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2 (The hearing commenced at 6:02 p.m.)

3 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Good evening. My

4 name is Laura Olivieri, and I'm an Administrative Law
5 Judge with the New York State Department of

6 Environmental Conservation.

7 I will be pre -- I will be presiding

8 over this public comment hearing to accept comments

9 on the application to renew the Title Five and Title
10 Four permits for the Applicant, Greenidge Generation,
11 L.L.C., regarding their facility Greenidge Station
12 located at 590 Plant Road in Dresden, New York.

13 The Department has determined that the
14 applications to renew the Title Five and Title Four
15 permits for their Greenidge Generating Station are

16 complete for the purposes of public review and

17 comment. While the Department has made the draft

18 permits available for public review and comment, the
19 Department has not made a tentative or final
20 determination to issue any final permits for the
21 facility.
22 A legal notice of the complete
23 application including availability of draft permits,
24 and the announcement of the virtual public comment
25 hearings was published on September 10th, 2021 in the
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Finger Lakes Times newspaper.

This public comment hearing is being
held through the Webex electronic webcast platform.
Assisting me today from the D.E.C.'s Office of
Communication Services are Maria Katchmar, Emma
Antolas and Andrea Linton.

You should have only one audio input
from one device. Otherwise, you may experience
issues with feedback. Everyone has been muted upon
entry. If at any time during this hearing you
experience technical issues, you may call five one
eight four zero two eight zero four four. Again,
that is five one eight four zero two eight zero four
four.

The purpose of today's public comment
hearing is to allow members of the public to comment
on the renewal of the Greenidge Generations --
Generating Station Title Five and Title Four permits.
Today is not a question and answer session.

The Department has given an extension
for written comments and they've been -- they may be
now submitted until November 19th, 2021. If
submitted by email, the written comments must be sent

by November 19th, 2021. And if mailed, they must be
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postmarked by November 19th, 2021 in order to be
considered by the Department.

Equal weight is given by the
Department to both written and oral comments. For
those of you who are attending this hearing wvia the
internet, we have the information for the submission
of written comments on the screen.

For those who of you are attending
over the phone, we will read that information off to
you shortly. Anyone who wishes to speak today was
required to register by October 8th, 2021.

We will call on elected officials
first and then we will call on all registered
speakers in the order in which they're registered.
Due to the number of people who wish to speak, we are
limiting each speaker to two minutes to make their
comments in a -- in order to allow everyone time to
speak.

Please be respectful of the time
limit. If you have not completed your remarks within
two minutes, we will ask you to conclude. For those
of you who are attending over the internet, there
will be a two-minute timer on the screen to help you

keep track of your time.
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We will call your name when it is your
turn to speak. At that time your line will be
unmuted if you have attended over the internet. If
you have attended by phone, when we call your name,
we ask that you press star three on your telephone to
raise your hand so that we can unmute your line.
Please do not press star three until we have called
your name.

When you make your statement, please
speak loudly, slowly and clearly. All comments today
are being recorded by a court reporter. If we cannot
hear you there is a concern that we will not have an
accurate record.

I will now read the mailing address
for the submission of written comments for those
attending by phone. The mailing address for the
submission of written comments is New York State
D.E.C. Division of Environmental Permits, Bureau of
Energy Project Management, 625 Broadway, Albany, New
York 12233-1750. Attention Chris Hogan, H-0O-G-A-N.

Again, that's New York State D.E.C.
Division of Environmental Permits, Bureau of Energy
Project Management, 625 Broadway, Albany, New York

12233-1750, attention Chris Hogan.
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The email address for the submission
of written comments is the word comment, C-O-M-M-E-N-
T, dot greenidgegenerating2021, Greenidge is spelled
G-R-E-E-N-I-D-G-E and that's @dec.ny.gov. So again,
it's comment.greenidgegenerating202l@dec.ny.gov.
Please state Greenidge Comments in the subject line.

We will now begin taking public
comments. Your line will be unmuted when it is your
turn to speak. If you're attending by phone again,
when you hear your name called please press star
three on your phone to raise your hand so we know
which line you're on and we can unmute your line.

If you join us by the internet, you
can click on the participants' button to open the
participants' panel. You will see at the bottom of
your screen a small hand icon. If you click on that,
that will raise your hand in case you are
participating by internet and need to communicate
with us.

We will now begin calling speakers. 1
apologize in advance if I mispronounced name. Please
correct me 1if I state your name incorrectly and then
state it correctly for the court reporter. And as a

reminder, please speak slowly and clearly for the
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court reporter.
The first speaker tonight is Mr.
Buttons. Mr. Terry Buttons, if you're on the line.
MS. ANTOLAS: (unintelligible) Jjoined

us. I don't see his name.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Okay. I can
come back and -- and call him in a few minutes.

We'll try once more. The next speaker is Sydney
Zayer. Sydney Zayer, 1f you are on the telephone,
you can press -- press star three to raise your hand.

MS. ZAYER: Hi.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hi.

MS. ZAYER: My name is Sydney Zayer.
I'm a student at SUNY New Paltz and I live on campus.
And I'm testifying today to urge you to deny the air
permit renewals for this facility.

This plant uses enormous energy
amounts and if this is permitted to continue, it will
undermine and violate New York's Climate Leadership
and Community Protection Act enacted to allow us to
reach our climate goals, goals that we're running out
of time to reach.

Since becoming a Bitcoin mining

facility, the plant CO emissions have increased
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drastically. The natural environment of our
beautiful state will suffer greatly at the expense of
this facility.

Greenidge is unnecessary and provides
no benefit and certainly no benefit worth the cost of
clean air, the cost of our state and our planet.

I'm in college studying to create a
life for myself here in this beautiful state. All
the while the impact of facility such as these are
undermining our citizens' health and wellness.

So I strongly urge you to deny the air
permit for this facility. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Mark Petzold.

MR. PETZOLD: My name is Mark Petzold,
and I split my time between Tioga Center and Geneva.
I urge the D.E.C. to deny Greenidge Title Four and
Five Air Permits.

Greenidge Bitcoin operations are odds
with reducing CO emissions to combat climate change.
I've invested inzsolar panels and heat pumps to do my
part.

I no longer burn heating oil. I'm on

the list for an electric vehicle. I feel good about

ARIl@courtsteno.com WWwWw.courtsteno.com


www.courtsteno.com
mailto:ARII@courtsteno.com

800.523.7887 Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 11
10-13-2021 - Greenidge Generation LLC - WebEx

the choices I've made. What is the value of my
choices if New York State allows fossil fuel burning
industries with no benefit to the people of New York
State to exist?

Climate change is a threat to our way
of life. We can live just fine without Bitcoin. 1In
2020, Greenidge burned three point seven billion
cubic feet of gas and spewed four hundred and fifty-
six million pounds of CO into our air.

Those numiers will continue to
increase with their expanded Bitcoin operation.
Approximately nineteen thousand more computers are on
order in 2021 to bring your total to thirty-two
thousand five hundred according to their SEC S-1
filing.

Put these numbers in perspective, my
eighty-eight-year-old dad lives in a modest twelve
hundred square foot house and burned a thousand
sixty-one cubic feet of natural gas in 2020.
Greenidge burned enough natural gas to heat three
point five million homes like his.

Criminals around the world use
Bitcoin. We -- we all know about the ransomware

attacks that have been happening. P.B.S. reports
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White Supremacists who are denied access to banks and
credit cards are now financing their hate through
Bitcoin.

Why would New York State support
technology that enables those activities. Climate
change predictions for New York including increased
precipitation and harvested grapes at Seneca Lake
Winery this year, the grape rot was incredible.

The D.E.C. needs to protect our world
class wine industry, not likely regulate greedy
companies like Greenidge to contribute to global
warming.

It's time for the D.E.C. and Governor
Hochul to advance the public interest and shut down
Bitcoin mining across the state. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Nyah Estevez.

MS. ESTEVEZ: Hello, can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. ESTEVEZ: Okay. Hi, my name is
Nyah Estevez. I'm a student studying political
science and environmental studies at SUNY New Paltz,
and I reside full-time at Ulster County.

I oppose the permits that allows Green
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-— Greenidge Generating Station to operate proof of
work cryptocurrency mining. It is not in the best
interest for the State of New York to allow these
mining activities to occur without a detailed
environmental impact statement being completed first.

Before allowing the construction of
these crypto mining centers, New York needs to
evaluate the effects of the -- that this will have on
greenhouse gas emissions and the state's air and
water quality.

I have lived in the state of New York
my whole life and have a personal -- personal
connection to its environment. So when the state
passed the Climate Leadership and Community
Protection Act in 2019, I could not have been more
happy that my state government was actually
implementing policies to protect the space that we
live in.

Permitting proof of work crypto mining
will make the act seem like a package of broken
promises. To even consider allowing these data
mining operations is a step in the wrong direction.

According to The New York Times,

researchers have found that Bitcoin mining consumes
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more electricity than the entire country of Ireland
globally.

This reveals that cryptocurrency
mining uses large amounts of energy power which has
large impacts on the environment that cannot go
unnoticed. Moreover, these mining activities also
affect the people of New York, particularly
communities of color in New York.

Black and brown families often live in
areas where fossil fuel power plants are present,
which means they're exposed to air pollution and
water contamination. Air pollution has been long
linked to asthma and asthma attacks. And being that
I actually have asthma, I know what it's like
firsthand to have chest tightness.

So the state of New York must stop,
remove including crypto mining centers. An
environmental assessment must be conducted to ensure
that the impact of these operations will not further
harm both the environment and the communities that
live within it. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. Our next
speaker is Vinny Aliperti. Vinny Aliperti, if you're

on the phone, please press star three.
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Okay. The next speaker is Guy Jacob.

MR. JACOB: I serve as —-- good
evening. Can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MR. JACOB: Hello.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes, we can hear
you.

MR. JACOB: Hi, I serve as
conservation chair for South Shore Audubon Society in
Nassau County. While Greenidge is wreaking
unmitigated havoc on Seneca -- on the Seneca Lake
Community and its environment, this under the radar
facility does have the potential to set an utter
nightmare precedent the likes of which New York State
has never encountered before.

Proof of work cryptocurrency mining at
Greenidge is intrinsically inconsistent with the
C.L.C.P.A. and granting this Title V permit would
give an adulterated license to a stealthy operation
that is already poisoning New York's air and water
would abandon increasing its magnitude annually.

Worse, migrating like some creeping
disease this permit would engender more fracked gas

proof of work mining throughout the Empire State.
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Nothing could ever mitigate Greenidge's business
model, nothing.

Current measures and plans are great
in their impact are merely blatant acts of
desperation, the kind of illogical devoid of science
thinking one would expect to hear when a company has
nothing substantial to say or do in their defense.

Promoting offsets and fanciful vague
ideas of eventually running on a hundred percent
sourced renewable hydrogen or renewable natural gas,
these are nothing but tacit acknowledgments that the
obnoxious fracked gas plants is bad news for New
York's clean energy future.

It's like an absent father telling his
son who desperately wants to spend time with him,
don't worry, we'll get together soon, but soon never
comes. Neither will these fanciful ideas ever come
to pass.

Greenidge's ambitions are on the wrong
side of history. Our eyes, our very souls are set on
a clean energy future for New York State, the
beginnings of which are already in our midst.

We must not, we cannot turn back the

hands of time. The D.E.C. 1s correct to raise the
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red flag over Green —-- Greenidge's operations. We

urge the Hochul administration to send their Title V
permit request to the garbage heap history where it
belongs and commence with a full environmental
assessment. Thank you so much for your time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Kathryn Bartholomew.

MS. BARTHOLOMEW: Hi.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes, hi.

MS. BARTHOLOMEW: Hi. Thank you for
the opportunity to speak this evening. My name is
Kate Bartholomew, chair of the Atlantic Chapter of
the New York State Chapter of the Sierra Club.

I reside just outside of Watkins Glen
in Schuyler County. And on behalf of the entire four
hundred -- forty thousand plus members of our -- our
membership, we ask the D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's
Title V air permit.

But it's not just the air permit, I
mean it's the whole package. And the basic question
one must ask about Greenidge is who benefits.
Greenidge is no longer operating solely to provide
power to the public. 1It's become largely a private

operation to mine Bitcoin, the most outdated and
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dinosaur of proof of work cryptocurrency.
The financial rewards main -- remain
with the company and -- and its investors while the -

- while the environmental impacts of its intensive
energy use are externalized, impacting our community,
our state and our ever warming world.

Okay. Under Governor Cuomo, the
D.E.C. failed to consider this a new source and did
not complete a thorough environmental review as
required by seeker, but now the D.E.C. under Governor
Hochul has the opportunity to demonstrate that New
York is serious about climate change and reverse this
by denying the permit renewal and it's an opportunity
to take the right stand. This facility is not
consistent with the C.L.C.P.A. and its air permit
should be denied.

Greenidge is not an outlier. 1It's a
precedent setting test case for other potential New
York facilities like the Ford Star plant in North
Tonawanda and many others. The greenhouse gas
emissions at the Greenidge Generating Station are
skyrocket -- skyrocketing.

Under C.L.C.P.A. Greenidge is required

to factor in both the greenhouse gases it produces
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offsite and (unintelligible) meaning from the
drilling site to the pipelines and onto the power
plant.

These combined emissions, according to
Green —-- Greenidge's own calculations, would exceed
the limit on its Title V air permit -- permit by
nearly sixty-seven pernet -- percent, and they
project that they're onsite and upstream emissions
total over a million tons.

It's not carb -- carbon neutral as
they claim. Sources in the electric generating
sector are not allowed to participate in carbon
offsets. At this time, Greenidge has not provided
the justification for the facility nor proposed
sufficient alternatives of greenhouse gas mitigation
measures.

Now that its operation is primarily
for private use, it does not serve the public in any
meaningful capacity. And in fact, since it's making
supposedly so much money, there are many things that
it could use this -- the money -- it's money for -- I
see I'm past time. Sorry.

Thank you very much for your time, and

we will be submitting written comments. I apologize
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for going over. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Thank you.
The next speaker is Taylor -- sorry, Yvonne Taylor.
Yvonne Taylor, if you're on the phone, please press
star three.

MS. TAYLOR: 1I've been unmuted. Can
you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. TAYLOR: Good evening. I reside
along the shores of Seneca Lake on land that has been
in my family for generations. I am the Vice
President of Seneca Lake Guardian.

I urge the D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's
Title V air permit. The Greenidge facility
originally transitioned to burn gas to provide power
to the public.

Now, it has become largely a private
operation to mine Bitcoin with plans to expand,
leaving its negative environmental risks to harm our
region's rich agritourism related community
character, our state and our climate in the midst of
a climate crisis.

This new use operation and its

increased greenhouse gas emissions create a precedent
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setting opportunity for Governor Hochul to
demonstrate how serious New York is about being a
leader on climate.

The D.E.C. made a mistake by failing
to consider this a new source and completing a
thorough environmental review as required by SEQRA at
its onset.

Now, you must demonstrate that New
York is prepared to enforce its new climate law and
reverse this bad decision. Greenidge has not
demonstrated that its permit renewal is justified or
consistent with the C.L.C.P.A.

When this plant shut down it was
producing zero emissions from 2011 through 2016.
Greenidge's combined onset and upstream emissions
would exceed the limit on its Title V air permit by
nearly sixty-seven percent emitting over a million
tons of CO equivalents annually.

’ If New York aims to bring statewide
emissions to fifteen (unintelligible) million tons
total by 2030, Greenidge alone could make that goal
impossible to achieve. Because Greenidge threatens
the environmental and economic sustainability of this

region is a precedent setting test case for other
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aging power plants in New York and is not consistent
with New York's Climate Laws.

I respectfully request that the D.E.C.
deny the Title V air permit for Greenidge. Thank
you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Joseph Campbell.

MS. ANTOLAS: I believe Joseph and
Yvonne were in the same space so they --

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay.

MS. ANTOLAS: -- were together, so I
think we can move to the next.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Thank you.

MS. TAYLOR: ©No, Joseph want -- was
signed up to speak as well. So he also wanted to
speak.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Is he
prepared to speak now?

MS. TAYLOR: I see he is muted again.
So can you unmute him, Emma?

MS. ANTOLAS: Yes, Joseph is unmuted.

MR. CAMPBELL: Okay. Am I unmuted?

MS. ANTOLAS: Yes.

MR. CAMPBELL: Thank you, Andrea
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(sic). And thank you for this opportunity. I'm the
co-founder and president of Seneca Lake Guardian, and
in a September 2012 letter to the Public Service
Commission from A.E.S. regarding the retirement of
the power plant now known as Greenidge, they quoted
from an analysis by the New York Independent System
Operator showing that there will be no harm to the
rebile -- reliability of the electric transmission
systems in New York.

The letter also states that the plant
would be perm -- permanently retired or dismantling
and salvaged or basically sold for scrap. The bottom
line is there was no public need for additional power
at the time.

On September 15, 2016, the Public
Service Commission held a hearing on the petition by
Greenidge for a certificate of public convene --
convenience and necessity. Greenidge "requests an
order providing for the light -- lightened regulation
of it as an electric corporation operating in the
wholesale power markets." Later in the same
document, Greenidge is quoted as saying, "in the case
of emergent generating facilities, proposing to

operate exclusively in New York's competitive
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wholesale markets."

That's important to remember.
Greenidge is well aware of the almost non-existent
need for the power that they were proposing to
generate. Everyone assumed they would be operating
as a peaker plant generating electricity for the grid
during times of high demand.

But since 2019, Greenidge has been
quietly installing Bitcoin mining rigs and operating
the plant behind the meter. Very little of the
electricity they produce is actually serving the
public need.

To date, they have installed roughly
fifteen thousand three hundred mining rigs, and their
intention is to have as many as thirty thousand of
these energy clogs running twenty-four seven, three
sixty-five, ramping up to as much as eighty-five mega
-- megawatts of capacity by 2022 for Bitcoin mining
alone.

Perhaps the P.S.C. was
(unintelligible) into issuing certificates to
Greenidge based on the model that they were presented
with. Perhaps the D.E.C. understaffed, overworked

and underpaid was also (unintelligible) into simply
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reissuing the very generous air and water permits
that A.E.S. enjoyed when it was operating at full
capacity.

But what Greenidge pulled was a
classic bait and switch, and the P.S.C. and the
D.E.C. should be thoroughly embarrassed. Governor
Hochul can make things right by ordering the D.A. --
D.E.C. to deny Title V air permits and shutting down
this climate busting industry that is emitting
hundreds of thousands of tons of greenhouse gases
every year for the enrichment of a few at the -- at
the expense of New York's air and the bulk greenhouse
gas reductions outlined in the C.L.C.P.A.

Thank you for your time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Britney Trinidad. Britney Trinidad, if
you are on by telephone, please press star three on
your phone.

Okay. The next speaker is Kishbel
(phonetic spelling) Estevez. Kishbel Estevez, if you
are on the phone, please press star three.

The next speaker is Erin Siebert.

MS. SIEBERT: Yes, this is Erin. Can

you hear me?
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A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. SIEBERT: Hi. My name is Erin
Siebert, and I have had the privilege to live and
grow up on Seneca Lake living only a few miles south
of the Greenidge facility.

I strongly urge the D.E.C. to deny
Greenidge's Title V air permit until a more thorough
environmental review has taken place. One of
Greenidge's main claims is that they are fully carbon
neutral, yet they are not paying to offset their
methane emissions.

Methane is thirty-four times stronger
than CO at trapping heat over one-hundred-year
period ind eighty-six times stronger over a twenty-
year period.

Under the C.L.C.P.A., any greenhouse
gas emission offset project must provide a
discernible benefit to the environment rather than to
the source be located in the same county and within
twenty-five miles of the source of emissions, enhance
the conditions of the ecosystem adversely affected
and substantially reduce or prevent the generation or
release of pollutants through source reduction.

In a state where we are trying to
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achieve zero emissions, carbon offsetting isn't
delivering what we need, which is a reduction in the
carbon emissions actually entering the atmosphere.

Jeffrey Kirt, C.E.O. of Greenidge
Generation Holdings, Inc., stated that by "making
cryptocurrency mining fully carbon neutral
immediately, Greenidge is once again leading in
environmental efforts."

However, in order for Greenidge to
lead in environmental efforts, they need to invest in
real solutions to reduce carbon emissions entering
the atmosphere and begin meeting the C.L.C.P.A.'s
requirements, they must do more.

In our current climate crisis, we can
no longer adapt, we must mitigate and meet our
climate goals. ©No entity should be exempt from the
State's goals, especially Greenidge.

Greenidge's operations are not
consistent with the C.L.C.P.A. And as a result of
the implicating environmental and economic risks, I
respectfully request that the D.E.C. and Governor
deny the Title V air permit for Greenidge. Thank you
so much for your time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next

ARIl@courtsteno.com WWwWw.courtsteno.com


www.courtsteno.com
mailto:ARII@courtsteno.com

800.523.7887 Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 28
10-13-2021 - Greenidge Generation LLC - WebEx
speaker is DeDe Duncan-Probe. DeDe Duncan-Probe, if

you are on the telephone, please press star three.

MS. ANTOLAS: I have a Bishop Duncan-
Probe on the line.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Thank you.

MS. DUNCAN-PROBE: I can't seem to —-
oh, can you hear me now?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. DUNCAN-PROBE: Okay. I couldn't
seem to unmute. Thank you. Good evening. I'm the
Right Reverend DeDe Duncan-Probe. I'm the Episcopal
Bishop of Central New York.

I appreciate the opportunity to appear
before you regarding Greenidge's application for an
air permit for the electrical generation facility on
Seneca Lake. Part of Seneca Lake lies within my
diocese, and I'm here because I believe that as
people of faith, we have an obligation to act as
stewards of creation, to protect the planet from
degradation by improper use of our natural resources,
and to provide for our home, livable for all
creatures and humans.

For two reasons, I believe the

Department of Environmental Conservation and the new
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administration of Governor Hochul should deny this
permit application.

First, I'm very concerned that the
operation of the Greenidge plant will warm the waters
of Seneca Lake and pollute the surrounding air,
damaging the pastoral setting of the lake with which
we're blessed.

The result will be a less desirable
setting for the wine industry and tourism,
jeopardizing jobs and economic activity for the
region. Second, I am concerned that the electricity
to be generated will be used to mine Bitcoin.

We're well aware that the Chinese
government has now banned Bitcoin mining, partly due
to the extreme energy consumption -- consumption and
air pollution. And as a result, that activity is
finding its way to the United States. If the air por
-- permit is granted, this plant and others like it
will through huge greenhouse gas emissions contribute
in a major way to climate change. And as we know,
the burden of climate change falls on the least
fortunate of our siblings.

As sea levels rise and island people

are deprived of their homelands, and as droughts and
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2 floods threaten agriculture, fos -- fostering

3 migration and refugee crises.

4 The benefit of Bitcoin mining belong

5 to the first world and are negligible at best. Thank
6 you for your attention. I hope you are able to agree
7 that issuing Greenidge's permit is not in the

8 interests of our region or the wellbeing of the

9 planet. Thank you.
10 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
11 speaker is Kathleen McCarthy.
12 MS. MCCARTHY: Hello, thank you. Hi,
13 thank you for the opportunity --

14 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hi.

15 MS. MCCARTHY: -- opportunity to wvoice
16 my concerns. My name is Kathleen McCarthy. I live
17 in New York City. And I'm a frequent visitor to the
18 area near the facility. I urge the D.E.C. to deny

19 that Title Four and Five permit for the Greenidge
20 facility.
21 This power plant which is basically a
22 private facility is spewing huge amounts of
23 greenhouse gases twenty-hours hours a day, seven days
24 a week to support a Bitcoin mining operation.
25 It will adversely impact air and water
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quality, human health, agriculture, and it will
damage vital eco -- environmental resources that all
New Yorkers share.

The financial rewards will remain with
the company its -- and its investors, while the
environmental impacts will be borne by the local
community, our state and our ever warming world.

This greenhouse gas power plant is
simply not necessary to serve either short-term or

long-term power generation reliability needs within -

The facility should have been treated
by D.E.C. as a new source when it transitioned from a
shuttered coal plant to a gas plant because of the
enormous change in operating time to twenty-four
seven and the heavy impact it has on Tobago Lake.

Governor Hochul should now direct the
D.E.C. to view this facility through the nen -- lens
of New York's climate law and deny the Title V air
permit. The facility is not consistent with the
C.L.C.P.A. and it's air permit should be denied.

According to Greenidge's own
calculations, this facility will total over a million

tons of greenhouse gases annually and exceed the
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permit on it's -- the limit on its air permit by near
-- nearly sixty-seven percent.

It's not carbon neutral as sources in
the electric generating sector are not allowed to
participate in carbon offset scheme as Greenidge is
trying to do.

Cryptocurrency can have other
protocols without the energy consumption of pro --
proof of work, which is the Bitcoin mining. Proof of
stake protocols can be used, which will -- do not
produce extreme amounts of energy consumption.

We New Yorkers fought for the
C.L.C.P.A. We're serious about climate law.

Governor Hochul must get serious about it too, become
the governor New York State deserves and direct the
D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's Title V air permit
renewal.

Thank you so much for your time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Next speaker is John
Rath. John Rath, if you're on the telephone, please
press star three.

MR. RATH: Hello, I'm speaking from a
computer.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Oh, hello. Yes, we
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2 can hear you.

3 MR. RATH: Great. Thank you very

4 much. I really appreciate it. I live in the

5 beautiful Hudson Valley in Poughkeepsie. And I'm

6 respectfully asking the D.E.C. and Governor Hochul to
7 deny the Article V permit for the Greenidge facility.
8 I understand my argument needs to be

9 substantive and significant. And I don't really know
10 what that means. What I -- what I do know is what I
11 think common sense dictates.
12 Common sense dictates three things to
13 me. That there needs to be a thorough environmental
14 review dealing with this permit application that
15 upstream emissions as required by the C.L.C.P.A. need
16 to be factored in and that this application needs to
17 be compliant with the C.L.C.P.A. rule.
18 I want to thank you for letting me

19 speak here. I recently moved from Texas, I'm -- I'm
20 back in my home state of New York after many years --
21 too many years in Texas, and I want to compliment the
22 -- the D.E.C. because in Texas, very few people had
23 these kind of public sessions.
24 The (unintelligible) is known as that
25 agency that totally supports business and therefore
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they don't even participate. And it's definitely an
honor to be able to participate here. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: The next speaker, I
will call Terry Button again. Terry Button, if
you're on the telephone, please press star three so
we can unmute your line.

Okay. The next speaker is Tara Noble.
Tara Noble, if you're on the phone, please press star
three.

Okay. The next speaker is Gay
Nicholson. Gay Nicholson, if you're on the
telephone, please press star three.

Okay. The next speaker is Lisa
Marshall. Hello?

MS. MARSHALL: Hi, sorry.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: That's okay.

MS. MARSHALL: So thank you for
holding this hearing. I live in Sherman County as my
husband says under the Middle Finger, the Finger
Lakes.

And I am on the State Leadership Team
of Mothers Out Front New York as well as on my day
job, I'm the program director for HeatSmart Tompkins,

which works to help people to improve their energy
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efficiency of their home and building.

And I just wanted to say that there
has been a lot of really good comments, and I don't
think I have much to add in terms of directly the
Bitcoin mining, which is just -- I just wanted to
talk about the work that I do and why this Bitcoin
mining is so incredibly offensive to everything that
I work for in New York State.

I work both at the state policy level
to try to implement better policies for buildings and
-- and enerqgy efficiency. And I work one on one with
hundreds and hundreds of homeowners in this region
who want to figure out how they can afford to get off
of fracked gas in their own homes. And make great
sacrifices in order to do that, they are paying a lot
of money for more expensive, currently heat -- heat
pump systems sometimes, if they're on a gas heating
for their house, they actually are -- end up paying
more for the heat pump. Not just to put it in, but
also to operate it. But they're willing to do that
because our values are to move New York off of gas
and onto clean and renewable energy.

So when we passed the C.L.C.P.A., we

were so thrilled that it gave the D.E.C. this
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specific authority that they could look at every
permit under that guise of the -- of the -- of the

C.L.C.P.A. requirements, and I was very pleased to
see when the Williams Pipeline was denied that the
D.E.C. wrote in their decision not just about clams
in the benthic environment, et cetera, but they took
the time to write why that gas pipeline in New York
violated the C.L.C.P.A. and the principles of it.

And so I just hope that
(unintelligible) and Chris Hogan and Governor Hochul
will take this opportunity to sort of look at the big
picture here and see what precedent they're setting
for the people of New York and the values that we
have so clearly expressed. Thank you so much.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Mary Finneran. Mary Finneran, if you are
on the telephone, please press star three so we can
unmute your line.

Okay. The next speaker is Rene
Carver.

MR. CARVER: Good evening.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: What?

MR. CARVER: My name is Rene Carver,

and I live in Trumansburg, New York between Cayuga
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and Seneca Lakes. I'm joining this hearing in order
to strongly urge the D.E.C. and, if necessary,
Governor Hochul to deny Greenidge's permits.

For far too long, extractive
industries have used the argument that economic
benefits outweigh any environmental impacts. Thus,

our collective world is in a planetary crisis.

Please carefully consider the total
environmental impact of the actually intended use of
the facility. These impacts must take into account
all methane from initial fracking, through all
leakages and the actual burning at the plant.

The negative impacts of the incredible
amount of e-waste should also be considered.

Further, if allowed, the plant will have even more
negative impacts on the air quality of the region,
the noise level of the area, the health of Seneca
Lake and the vibrantly healthy agricultural economy
of the region.

For projects like Greenidge and
Fortistar, there is no broad public benefit that will
be realized. 1In these areas, the state and the
planet would see more jobs, broader economic

development and a healthier environment if the
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facility reverted to farmland. Please deny the
permit. Thank you for your time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Frank Blaskowitz.

MR. BLASKOWITZ: Hello.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hello.

MR. BLASKOWITZ: Yes, my name is Frank
Blaskowitz, and I live on West Bayard (phonetic
spelling) Street in Seneca Falls, New York. And I am
here to urge New York's D.E.C. to deny the renewal of
the Title V air permit and to deny the renewal of the
Title Four Acid Rain Permit for Greenidge Generation
in Dresden, New York.

My wife and I moved to Seneca Falls,
New York, just last year in the middle of the
pandemic. We moved from a very -- a very small-town
Beaver, Pennsylvania, on the Ohio River in western
Pennsylvania, up thirty miles north of Pittsburgh.

We actually plan to retire to Beaver.
And then came Shell 0il. Shell was given tax breaks
by Pennsylvania and air permits from the D.E.P. in
Pennsylvania. I don't know what happened to
environmental protection.

So anyway, Shell came in and they're
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building a cracker plant that takes byproducts from
fracking and produces ethylene pellets used in making
plastics while emitting millions of tons of
greenhouse gases into the western Pennsylvania air.

Similar chemical facilities exist in
Louisiana and are actually known as cancer alley. So
the D -- D.E.C. though -- we know decided to move to
New York because the D.E.C. mission statement says to
conserve, improve and protect New York's Natural
Resources and Environment and to -- to prevent, abate
and control water, land and air pollution in order to
enhance the health, safety and welfare of the people.

Greenidge is a Bitcoin mining
operation. And with its power-hungry Bitcoin mining
machines, they will exceed with the upstream
greenhouse gas emissions, they will exceed by over
sixty percent their permitted level.

The C.L.C.P.A. states that they have
to be denied their permits based on the regulations
of the C.L.C.P.A. So that's what I am urging the
D.E.C. to do, is to take environmental protective
action and deny those permits. Thank you for your
time today.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Next speaker is
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2 Donald or Skip Jensen?

3 MR. JENSEN: Can you hear me?

4 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

5 MR. JENSEN: Okay. Thank you for

6 having this hearing tonight, and I appreciate the

7 opportunity to speak. My name is Donald Jensen. I'm
8 a retired dairy farmer and have lived in Yates County
9 and in the Dresden area all my life.

10 My wife and I have raised -- raised

11 our family here and two of our three grown daughters
12 also live in the area. I strongly support Greenidge
13 Generation, L.L.C., and applaud it for its

14 significant environmental stewardship, its production
15 of needed electrical generation and positive economic
16 impact on creating jobs and a significant investment
17 in the Finger Lakes region.

18 Greenidge also contributes a

19 significant amount of tax to the Yates County. The
20 Yates County legislature yesterday approved
21 unanimously thirteen (unintelligible) nothing with
22 one abstention, supporting Greenidge and -- and its
23 operation.
24 Greenidge has taken several -- several
25 steps and is continuing to do this to protect the
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aquatic life of Seneca Lake and is currently
undertaking a thermal study which has been approved
and —-- approved by and is under the direction of the
D.E.C.

Greenidge operates its power facility
at full compliance with existing air and water
permits that have been issued by New York State. And
in May of this year, we announced that we are
voluntarily taking steps to be totally carbon
neutral.

Greenidge has contributed this past
year over three hundred thousand dollars in tax
dollars to the Pinon School System, to the Town of
Torrey and to Yates County.

Greenidge provides full-time Jjobs to a
number of people, and the average salary for those
jobs is over twice what the average salary is for
Yates County.

I strongly urge the D.E.C. and New
York State to renew this permit. This is a very
environmentally responsible plant and an organization
and I strongly urge you to -- to renew the permit.

Thank you very much for your time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
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speaker is Heather Stanton.

MS. STANTON: I'm -- am I unmuted now?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. STANTON: Okay. My name is
Heather Stanton. I live in Elmira, New York. I get
up to Seneca Lake quite often. 1It's not very far.

I'm also the team leader, volunteer leader for
Mothers Out Front, (unintelligible) County and I
agree with all of the points people have been making
previously about denying the permit or the reasons
why we shouldn't allow the Bitcoining operation at
Greenidge.

To me, it's just astounding that we
even consider such a proposal when it's so obviously
going to make climate change worse. It's just mind
boggling. I'm sure the D.E.C. is aware of all the
threats the climate change poses, so I won't repeat
them here, but I personally am very concerned about
my children and all of our children. And we're all
probably going to be alive by 2050. You know, the
impacts on agriculture alone and the food supply are
just terrifying.

So I urge the D.E.C. to deny the

permit. On that basis alone, you know, we just can't
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afford an increase in greenhouse gas emissions and
that's really all that I have to say and thank you
very much.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Thank you.
The next speaker is Gwen Chamberlain.

MS. CHAMBERLAIN: Thank you. My name
is Gwen Chamberlain. I'm a lifelong resident of
Yates County, a resident of Dundee, New York, an
owner of Seneca Lake property within three miles of
Greenidge Generation.

Some of my earliest memories for
growing up on a dairy farm, a short distance from
Greenidge Generation include watching thousands of
railroad cars and tractor trailers full of coal on
their way to the power plant.

And I recall as a child attending the
Dresden Elementary School in the 1960s within a mile
of that plant, by the way, seeing the dirty air and
roads from the use of coal in the plant. Things are
different today.

So I support the renewal of the Title
Four and Title Five permits for Greenidge Generation,
a company that has significantly reduced emissions as

a result of the conversion to clean natural gas.
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Greenidge provides needed electrical power to the New
York State grid every day. Power goes to the grid.

In 2016, the New York State Department
of Environmental Conservation and the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency reviewed potential
impacts of the facility and determined there would be
no significant environmental impacts in operating
full time and up to one hundred and six megawatts of
electricity.

Greenidge operates its power facility
in full compliance with existing air and water
permits issued by the State of New York. The plant
announced in May 2021 that it was voluntarily taking
steps to be totally carbon neutral.

I've listened to many callers today,
both at one o'clock and today at six o'clock repeat
misleading, false and irrelevant comments. I trust
the scientists of D.E.C. will gquickly be able to put
those comments aside and make the right decision for
Greenidge, the Town of Torrey, Yates County, Penn Yan
Central Schools, Seneca Lake and all of the Finger
Lakes.

Please renew the permits so a

responsible company can continue to invest in other

ARIl@courtsteno.com WWwWw.courtsteno.com


www.courtsteno.com
mailto:ARII@courtsteno.com

800.523.7887 Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 45
10-13-2021 - Greenidge Generation LLC - WebEx

improvements that will protect the environment and
improve the economic status of the region and enhance
the local community. Thank you for listening.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Beth Cain.

MS. CAIN: Yes, can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. CAIN: I'm Beth Cain from Dresden,
New York, and I urge Governor Hochul to direct the
D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's Title V air permit and
begin to meet New York climate goals.

As a registered nurse, I'm very
concerned about their increased greenhouse gas
emissions adversely affecting air and water quality,
and public health.

Greenidge uses millions of gallons of
precious Seneca Lake water to cool Bitcoin equipment,
causing a rise in our local water temperature, a
decline in fish population and constant loud noise
from the plant, twenty-four seven.

I know, I'm just one-and-a-half miles
from it, right down the lake, and I've lived on
Seneca for seventeen years. I frequently kayak out

on the water and I've noticed the decline.
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I —-— I am imploring the D.E.C. to
protect the health of both people and our
environment. And please deny this Title V air permit

and complete a full environmental review.

We must protect our environment for
future generations. This is imperative. Thank you
for your attention.

A.L.J. OLIVIERT: Thank you. Our next
speaker is Marc Devokaitis.

MR. DEVOKAITIS: Thank you. Can you
hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MR. DEVOKAITIS: Great. My name is
Marc Devokaitis, I live in Trumansburg, New York,
between Cayuga and Seneca Lakes. I live with my wife
and four-year-old daughter.

Worldwide cryptocurrency mining energy
use has risen over three hundred percent in the last
five years and a 2018 study in nature estimated
conservatively that based on transactions from that
time, Bitcoin mining could produce enough greenhouse
gases alone to raise global temperatures above the
two degrees Celsius tipping point by 2048.

In 2019, New York State passed the
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Climate Leadership and Community Protection Act,
C.L.C.P.A., stipulating perhaps one of the strongest
set of emissions regulations in the nation.

The C.L.C.P.A. stipulates that seventy
percent of the state's grids public electricity
supply come from renewable sources by 2030. But by
buying up old power plants, Bitcoin miners like
Greenidge are creating a loophole or trying to create
a loophole to evade the intent of this law at the
expense of every person in the region and really
across the world.

During 2020, the Greenidge emissions
jumped from about twenty-eight thousand tons CO2
emissions from twenty-eight tons to over two hundred
and forty thousand tons, or from about four thousand
homes worth of emissions to about forty thousand
homes worth of emissions.

Nitrous oxides -- or nitrogen oxides
jumped about the same proportion in that time, about
ten times. These are both potent greenhouse gases
that fuel climate warming and instability, and we
know that these numbers will only increase as
Greenidge goes ahead with its plans, if -- if allowed

to go with its plans.
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Greenidge calls itself carbon neutral
because they are now -- is planning to purchase
carbon offsets, but these offsets do not protect the
communities from the industry's pollution.

In terms of complying with the
C.L.C.P.A., power plants are not actually allowed to
use these offsets to attain their state mandated
emission cuts.

Allowing this energy intensive
operation which comes with scant, if any, public
benefit is reckless at best would likely set a
precedent that would put other communities around the
state and the nation at risk in similar ways.

For the sake of the air and water
quality today and in the future, for the sake of
passing along a livable biosphere to our children and
to their children, I urge the D.E.C. to deny this
permit and hold a full environmental review. Thank
you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Dennison Wolfe. Dennison Wolfe, if you
are on the telephone, please press star three.

Okay. The next speaker is Darrin

Magee.
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MR. MAGEE: Hi, there. Thanks for the

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hi.

MR. MAGEE: -- opportunity to speak
tonight. My name is Darrin Magee, I'm a professor of
environmental studies at Hobart and William Smith
Colleges in Geneva, New York about fifteen miles
north of the Greenidge plant.

I'd like to speak out resoundingly
against renewing the permits for this project. The
Greenidge plant is a dinosaur burning fuels from the
age of the dinosaurs. It should have been closed
years ago.

It is not operating at full capacity
and is already emitting nearly half a billion pounds
of CO. How many more one hundred megawatt,
outdaied, inefficient, thermal power plants around
the country and indeed around the world are waiting
to be turned into the next Bitcoin mining operation?

New York has set itself as a leader in
fighting climate change in a national context where
the U.S. has consistently failed to take the type of
climate leadership it could and should, and indeed

must. Don't put lipstick on this pig.
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Deny the air permits for this plant
and continue the good work fighting carbon emissions
that we must do. Emissions from Bitcoin mining are
frivolous, unnecessary and constitute a public harm
that the D.E.C. should not allow.

Nearshore outbreaks of cyanobacteria,
so called harmful algal blooms are also increasingly
common around Seneca Lake and the link between
warming waters and those blooms is increasingly
clear.

Cooling water from the plant will
almost certainly contribute to near shore
(unintelligible) and the science on climate change is
clear. Human generated greenhouse gas emissions are
worsening our climate crisis and no amount of green -
- greenwashing natural gas will change that.

I've been in the Finger Lakes for
thirteen years and involved in battles against
increasing imports of trash to the area. Increasing
storage of fossil fuels under the -- under Seneca
Lake, lighting up a new garbage incinerator, and now
this.

At what point can we put these

technologies of yesterday behind us and embrace a
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cleaner future for the Finger Lakes, New York State
and the world. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is John Dennis. John Dennis, if you're on
the telephone, please press star three.

Okay. The next speaker is Matthew
Kane. Matthew Kane, if you are on the telephone,
please press star three.

Okay. The next speaker is Michael
Jimenez. Michael Jimenez.

MR. JIMENEZ: Hello?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hello?

MR. JIMENEZ: Hi, this is Michael
Jimenez. I live in Tompkins County, town called
Trumansburg, New York. And I urge Governor Hochul to
direct the D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's Title Four Air
Permit.

Greenidge is no longer an operating --
is operating solely to provide power to the public
and has become largely a private operation to mine
Bitcoin.

Now, (unintelligible) there but the
financial rewards remain with the company and its

investors while the environmental impacts of its
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intensive energy use impact our community, our State
and our world.

Governor Hochul has the opportunity to
demonstrate that New York is serious about climate
change and reverse this by denying the permit
renewal.

This new use operation and its
increased greenhouse gas emissions negatively impact
the air quality in the region, noise levels impacting
human health, the health of the vibrant agriculture
within one of the State's largest agricultural
counties, and thermo pollution, and other exploration
of other natural resources, including our water.

This facility is not consistent with
the C.L.C.P.A. and its air permit should be denied.
For this reason, I just think that Governor Hochul
should step up and direct D.E.C. to view this
facility through the lens of New York's climate law
and deny the Title Five, or V, air permit. Thank you
very much.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Irene Weiser.

MS. WEISER: Thanks. Hi, this is

Irene Weiser, and I thank you for holding this public
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hearing. I'm a retired council member from the Town

of Caroline, and a current member of Tompkins
County's Climate Sustainability Advisory Committee
and I'm the coordinator of Fossil Free Tompkins.

I join with many others who have
called upon the D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's
application for renewal of their greenhouse gas
emission permits.

As many before me have discussed the
plant's emissions have increased tenfold since Bit --
Bitcoin mining began and they proposed to increase
further.

To allow the plant to continue to
increase emissions violates the will of the
legislature and the goals of the C.L.C.P.A. I want
to underscore just how important the D.E.C.'s
decision is in this precedent setting case.

Not only are there now other plants
like the Fortistar Plant in North Tonawanda, planning
to repurpose their peaker gas plant to mine crypto,
but in March of this year, in the Albany Times Union,
Gavin Donahue, the President and C.E.O. of the
Independent Power Producers, New York, penned an

opinion piece titled, there's a role for natural gas
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in the renewable energy future, wherein he described
Greenidge's transition to crypto mining as, "A model
for innovation."

To be clear, there can be no role for
natural gas in New York's renewable energy future and
there is nothing innovative in seeing a desperate
fossil -- fossil fuel industry find a new market for
their toxic product and then lie to the public about
it by saying they provide a public benefit and that
they are green because they plan to buy carbon
offsets.

Indeed, the C.L.C.P.A. prohibits
fossil fuel power plants from doing so. Proof of
work crypto mining itself is far from innovative. It
has an insatiable and indiscriminate appetite for
enerqgy.

In addition to the greenhouse gas
concerns discussed today, proof of work crypto mining
is already consuming nearly half a gigawatt of the
State's limited renewable energy resources.

This industry will consume as much
renewable energy as the state can produce. There are
other validation protocols such as proof of stake and

proof of authority that are -- that are innovative
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and importantly far more efficient.

The D.E.C. must protect our renewable
energy resources as they do our water and air
resources, for they too are precious. As a former
elected official, I am a sympathetic to the concerns
about the erosion of a local tax base and local jobs
when a power plant closes.

However, there is nothing innovative
in saying that maintaining a dirty inefficient power
plant is the only solution to a town's economic woes.

I caution that the D.E.C. not let
short-sighted economic development arguments become
the driver of energy policy and decision-making, or
else we will never reach our climate goals.

Innovative thinking would be for the
town to consider what kinds of new economic
development might be possible in a beautiful lakeside
community who might move in if there weren't a fossil
fuel power plant nearby belching toxic pollution
twenty-four seven.

I'm confident that as New York upholds
the commitments of the C.L.C.P.A. and continues its
path to be a leader in renewable energy, lasting

economic development will follow.
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I urge the D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's
application to renew their Title Four and Five Air
Permits. Additionally, I urge the D.E.C. to declare
a moratorium on all proof of work crypto mining in
New York State and to set energy efficiency standards
for transactions and all distributed ledger
applications. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERT: Thank you. Our next
speaker is Sara Hess.

MS. HESS: Hello, can you —-- can you
hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. HESS: Okay. My name is Sara
Hess, I'm from Tompkins County, and I urge the D.E.C.
to deny the air permits for Greenidge station. I'm
in full agreement with Commissioner Seggos, who was
quoted as saying, "Greenidge has not shown compliance
with New York's climate laws."

This new operation and its hugely
increased greenhouse gas emissions negatively impact
the air quality in the region, thermal pollution,
harming fish and adding to the HAPs in Seneca Lake.

It also impacts human health through

noise levels and the health of a vibrant agricultural
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community in the Finger Lakes. I want to point out

that hypocrisy of the Greenidge spokesperson who
apparently wrote, we embrace the important goals of
the C.L.C.P.A.

He went on, our current onsite and
upstream potential CO emissions are already
substantially lower tian the facility's actual
emissions in 1990 due to the step we took to
eliminate coal fired operations.

So this is their argument that their
emissions are less than those of a coal plant thirty
years ago? The fact that Greenidge had to go back
that far in time to find a comparable amount of
pollution tells the whole story.

We cannot go back in time. The
climate disasters and the tremendous work New York is
doing to reduce emissions compel the D.E.C. to deny
this permit.

And I want to underscore what other
has -- others have said, that being so-called carbon
neutral by buying carbon offsets or credits does
nothing, nothing to reduce the air emissions at this
plant and into this community.

Thank you for listening and thank you
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for inviting the public to speak on this important
matter.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Thomas Fletcher. Thomas Fletcher, if
you're on the telephone, please press star three --
three so we can unmute your line.

Okay. The next speaker is Phil Davis.

MR. DAVIS: All right. Can you hear
me now?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MR. DAVIS: Okay. So I'm Phillip
Davis, sixth generation resident of Hector, a small
farming community on the east side of Seneca Lake
(unintelligible) of the Greenidge Electric Generating
Plant.

I'm a farmer, owner of Damiani Wine
Cellars, a fine wine winery established in 2004, with
our first plantings for the winery in 1997. Our
vineyards need clean air for their health -- for
their health, just as your lungs need clean air to
thrive.

Let me read the D.E.C. mission
statement, and I quote, to conserve, improve --

improve and protect New York natural resources and
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environment, and to prevent -- prevent, abate and
control water, land and air -- air pollution in order

to enhance the health, safety and welfare of the
people of the State and their overall economic and
social well-being. A rather pointless statement and
noble even.

Given the obvious additional air
pollution, thermal pollution of the water and further
upstream degradation of the same, and given the
mission statement ostensibly purporting to protect us
the citizenry of New York from such, the issuance of
a permit for the expansion, let alone the current
levels of pollutants would seem to fly in the face of
the mission statement.

New York has taken bold steps to
acknowledge the obvious climate change and set goals
to mitigate such. New York has legislated its
commitment to reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Again, I say the issuance of a permit
to expand the capacity to pollute doesn't make sense.
One step forward and two steps backwards doesn't
yield a net gain.

This is a business whose focus is on

making -- on money generation regardless of the
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impact on the community upstream and downstream of
its facility from an environmental and consequent
health standpoint. They're not good nor desired
neighbors.

I, as a farmer, a winery owner, a
businessman, a human, and most importantly, a family
man, implore you to rule in favor of common sense and
deny the permit request. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: The next speaker is
Paula Fitzsimmons. Paula Fitzsimmons, if you're on
the telephone, please press star three.

Okay. The next speaker is Mary Cronk.
Mary Cronk, if you're on the telephone, please press
star three.

Okay. The next speaker is Meredith
Bocek. Meredith Bocek.

Okay. The next speaker is Janet
Sutta. Janet Sutta, please press star three on your
telephone, if you're on the telephone.

Okay. The next speaker I'll call is
Brandon Medina.

MR. MEDINA: Hi, my name is Brandon
Medina. I'm a resident of New York City on the Upper

West Side, but currently I'm in Washington D.C. for
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the People versus Fossil Fuels Protests.

And I don't know what to say. I
really don't know what to say because, first of all,
I want to congratulate so many of the people who
spoke before me in speaking out on why we should deny
the -- why the D.E.C. should deny the Article V
permit to Greenidge.

And -- but also because I have heard
so many testimonies here from people around the world
affected by the fossil fuel industry, Native
Americans in Minnesota -- anyway, the point is -- is
I -- I have trouble understanding why we're still
having this debate, when the I.P.C.C. made it clear
just how at risk we are as a planet and locally, and
for the effects of the local environment, the air and
water pollution.

And all this for cryptocurrency, which
is the preferred currency of criminal enterprises,
which has also already been noted by another speaker.
How White nationalists, Neo-Nazis are using it
because they can't use other fun -- methods of
wireless transaction.

It is also used by cyber hackers,

identity thieves, and those who prey on the elderly
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with the calls, oh, your Social Security is about to
expire, your D.M.V. lies.

And then they get their information
that way and take advantage of them. Yeah, I -- 1
don't know what to say. There's just so many
reasons, humungous reasons for the permits to de --
to be denied and -- I'm sorry, I'm just a little
overwhelmed by everything because this -- we
shouldn't be debating this at this point.

I shouldn't -- we shouldn't be
protesting climate change. We shouldn't be having to
have public hearings on limiting carbon emissions,
and the fact that we are, says a lot. And if the
permit is granted to allow this enabler of criminal
activities and to allow them to increase emissions
for it, it will be an unabashed acknowledgement of
New York being -- New York State being a blatantly
corrupt government institution. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Thank you.
The next speaker is Elisa Duccio. Elisa Duccio, if
you are on --

MS. ANTOLOS: We have -- Elisa Evett
has raised her hand.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay.
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MS. EVETT: Can you hear me now? Can
you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes, I can.

MS. EVETT: Okay.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes, thank you.

MS. EVETT: Yeah, that's all right.

My name is Elisa Evett and I live in the town of
Caroline. And I'm co-chair of Mothers Out Front
Tompkins.

Climate change is real. 1Its
catastrophic effects are happening now and it is time
for us to move into high gear to meet it head on. We
owe it to our children and grandchildren around the
world.

In New York, we have a powerful tool
to combat climate change and that is a C.L.C.P.A. and
we need to use it, to apply to the threat posed by
the Greenidge facility because of its spewing huge
amounts of greenhouse gases into the atmosphere, all
for private enrichment, not for the public good.

And according to its mission
statement, the D.E.C. is charged with protecting the
public good. One way is through regulations like the

Title Five Air Permit. There is no more important

ARIl@courtsteno.com WWwWw.courtsteno.com


www.courtsteno.com
mailto:ARII@courtsteno.com

800.523.7887 Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 64
10-13-2021 - Greenidge Generation LLC - WebEx

time then now for the D.E.C. to use its new C.L.C.P.A
powers to deny the permit by requiring Greenidge to
accurately report its present and predicting future
emissions.

This means reporting the totality of
its emissions, which is to say, the greenhouse gases
its produces on site and the emissions generated
upstream from the natural gas drilling site and
through the pipelines, where a significant leakage
occurs.

This total, according to Greenidge's
own calculations, would exceed the limit on its Title
Five Air Permit by nearly sixty-seven percent to
bring the total to over a million tons.

This D.E.C. will not be doing its job
if it granted air permit to a facility -- a facility
that will emit this staggering amount of greenhouse
gas emissions.

Another part of the C.L.C.P.A that
must figure in the D.E.C.'s decision regards to
Greenidge's devious attempt to claim that it is a
carbon neutral. It that -- it is carbon neutral
because it engages in carbon offsets, a practice that

is not even permitted to an electricity generating
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plant under the C.L.C.P.A.

Why? Because the carbon offsets do
absolutely nothing to minimize the production of
greenhouse gases. Drastically reducing greenhouse
gas emissions is the whole point of the C.L.C.P.A.

It is not just the effects of
Greenidge's air emissions on the planet that concern
me. I worry about the wellbeing of the people and
environment, and the immediate area of the plant.

The health of people in the region is
threatened by P.M. two point five and
(unintelligible) produced by the plant which have
been established as the causes of life threatening
respiratory and cardiac conditions.

Its emissions are also harmful to
crops, especially grapes which are key to the
economic life of the region. It being at the heart
of the wine industry in New York.

Poisoning the air with its emissions
would allow Greenidge to endanger the economic
prosperity of a presently vibrant region, thriving on
both agriculture and environmentally based tourism.

For these reasons and more, too

numerous to cite here, but luckily cited by others in
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this hearing, Governor Hochul needs to deny the Title
Five air permit to Greenidge. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: I'1ll call Paula

Fitzsimmons.

MS. FITZSIMMONS: Hello. Can you hear
me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. FITZSIMMONS: Hi, my name is Paula
Fitzsimmons. And I live on the same farm as my

husband who spokes early (unintelligible) Davis, on
the shores of Seneca Lake, and as he stated, we grow
grapes and we own a wine -- winery, all of which
exists due to the air and water conditions of this
magnificent region.

But more importantly to me, I'm a
physician assistant, and I have provided primary care
to the residents of this region for over thirty
years. I implore the D.E.C. to carry out its mission
statement and deny the Title Five permit for
Greenidge as its projected growth abysmally affects
air quality that in turn impacts the health of our
residents.

It is proven that air pollution

significantly worsens both respiratory and
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cardiovascular disease and many other health issues
including premature birth. Like many attending this
hear -- hearing, I spent years fighting to prevent
L.P.G. storage and salt caverns on this beautiful
lake in order to protect the health and welfare of
our residents.

And then, bewildered in a gas, that
once again, we are standing up to corporate interests
and money that have no benefit for our region and
residents. The investors will get the profits and we
will get the damages. It is so demoralizing to think
this could happen.

It would be chilling to think that
different agencies are siloed so that along with the
C.L.C.P.A.'s tremendous goals, you would have
agencies that were authorizing permits that are out
of compliance with that amazing law that we passed.

The goal of the C.L.C.P.A. is to
eliminate one hundred percent of the climate
pollution caused by humans. How bold, how brilliant,
we need to do it.

Greenidge is the first to turn a
retired power plant in New York into a cryptocurrency

mining operation. It is egregiously at odds with New

ARIl@courtsteno.com WWwWw.courtsteno.com


www.courtsteno.com
mailto:ARII@courtsteno.com

800.523.7887 Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

Page 68

1 10-13-2021 - Greenidge Generation LLC - WebEx

2 York State's climate change goals and the C.L.C.P.A.
3 And I implore Governor Hochul and the D.E.C. to act

4 in accordance with our ambitious mission to save our
5 health and lives and our planet. Thank you.

6 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Next speaker is

7 Vinny Aliperti.

8 MR. ALIPERTI: Hello.

9 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hello.
10 MR. ALIPERTI: Can you hear me?
11 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.
12 MR. ALIPERTI: Great. Thank you for
13 your time, and I'm very grateful for the opportunity.
14 My name is Vinny Aliperti. My wife and I own

15 Billsboro Winery on the shores of Seneca Lake, just a
16 few miles North of the Greenidge facility.

17 And we -- we too urge the Governor to
18 reject the Title Five permit, air emissions permit.
19 As -- as winemakers in the Finger Lakes for over
20 twenty years now, we have already seen the impacts of
21 climate change. The very real impact that affects
22 the ripening of our grapes, the increased humidity
23 levels in -- invade them -- increase in invasive
24 pests, erratic weather patterns, whether it's heavy
25 downpours or even drought, we have seen it all and
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these -- these patterns are becoming more intense.

And this facility and its projected
emissions are only going to exacerbate the situation.
We can't afford to see our climate continuing to
plunge into a -- erratic and unpredictable pattern.
Agriculture relies on predictability and the
stability of the environment.

If this project goes forward, and it
will, I assume, will inspire others, if indeed it
does go forward, it's only going to tip the balance
that's already at a very perilous point, as we all
know.

So we —-- we urge Governor Hochul and
the D.E.C. to please -- or to please oppose to reject
the Title Five permit. And I thank you for your
time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: The next speaker is
-- is Maryl Mendillo.

MS. MENDILLO: Hi, can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERTI: Yes.

MS. MENDILLO: Great. Hi, my name is
Maryl Mendillo. And I live near Keuka Lake in the
Finger Lakes region. My comment is in regards to the

green -- Greenidge mining facility cryptocurrency
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Permit V and IV.

I've been working hard to change my
lifestyle for the sake of our planet and our future.
I've made changes to -- to geothermal and I'm trying
to move all my things that I do in my life that I
take a conscious movement and decision-making to help
to save the planet and the climate change that we're
facing.

Industries -- industries like this,
work to change their message of their impact only to
find out decades later, often they've lied or changed
or stretched the truth.

We are at a critical tipping point to
our -- to climate change. And you can either turn it
around or we can lose this panel. Their plan is
unacceptable. We need to show the way to solid
decisions that are long sighted and planet inclusive.

I ask Governor Hochul, D.E.C. and
E.P.A. to put a halt to this plant and keep it from
going forward. To do so would be ludicrous. Thank
you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERT: There is Holly
Payne. Holly Payne, i1if you're on the telephone,

please press star three.
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Okay. The next speaker is Sara
Gronim.

MS. GRONIM: Hi, there.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: All right.

MS. GRONIM: Can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. GRONIM: Good evening. My name is
Sara Gronim, and I speak as a representative of the
thirty-four hundred members of 350 Brooklyn, a
volunteer driven organization, whose mission is to
counter the climate crisis through local action.
Thank you for letting me express our concerns here
this evening.

We come before you tonight joining our
fellow New Yorkers in firm opposition to the recent
reopening of the Greenidge Generating Station. And
consequently, we urge the D.E.C. to deny Greenidge's
Title Five air permit renewal, and we urge Governor
Hochul to support this denial.

We are one of the many organizations
across New York State as part of the New York Renews
Coalition work to pass the Landmark Climate
Leadership and Community Protection Act in 2019. And

as all of you at the D.E. -- D.E.C. are well aware,

ARIl@courtsteno.com WWwWw.courtsteno.com


www.courtsteno.com
mailto:ARII@courtsteno.com

800.523.7887 Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 72
10-13-2021 - Greenidge Generation LLC - WebEx

the purpose of the C.L.C.P.A. is to eliminate climate
pollution generated within New York, a goal that has
clear legal targets.

Interim targets include the mandate
that by 2030, just eight-and-a-half years from now,
seventy percent of electricity generated in New York
will be renewable. And that there will be forty
percent reduction in total greenhouse gas emissions
by our state.

Allowing the Greenidge Generating
Station to continue to operate is utterly
incompatible then with state law. Greenidge burns
fossil gas and so emits carbon dioxide, a greenhouse
gas that lingers for hundred years in the upper
atmosphere.

And fossil gas is itself primarily
methane, which leaks at the wellhead as others have
said during processing and from interstate pipelines,
and is vented routinely from compressor stations on
route.

And methane is eighty-six times more
powerful greenhouse gas in the first twenty years
after its release than is carbon dioxide. You at the

D.E.C. have heard these numbers over and over again
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with every pipeline and power plant permit that comes
before you.

But it cannot be repeated too often.
If we are truly going to effectively address the
climate crisis, if we are truly going to fulfill the
mandates of the C.L.C.P.A., fossil gas use in New
York State has to be wound down one after another.

The fossil fuels currently burned in
power plants and building boilers need to be replaced
with renewable sources of energy. Plants like the
Greenidge Generating Plant simply cannot be allowed
to continue to burn fossil fuels in our state. Thank
you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Peggy Haine.

MS. HAINE: Hello, can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. HAINE: Thank you. My name is
Peggy Haine. I live -- I live in the town of Hector,
one of the towns along the Eastern shore of Seneca
Lake and I'm the retired editor of the Finger Lakes
Wine Gazette.

I've been in this area since 1961, and

I am in opposition to granting this Title Five Air
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Permit for the production of Bitcoin at the Greenidge
plant.

In 1974, New York State enacted the
Farm Winery Act, giving grape farmers who had
experienced a -- a severe financial downturn, a new
lease on life. Since that time, the wine industry
has grown phenomenally and it now employs over fifty-
thousand people and is a tourist attraction.

People come from all over the world to
sample our wines and enjoy the beauty of our area.
The proposed Bitcoin expansion will have the -- an
impact on our air, on the lake, and an impact as well
on tourism, and -- and the wine -- and on the wine
industry. Not only for climate issues, but also just
because it's very unpleasant.

It's unpleasant noises on the lake and
to service everybody. This is a test case and it
will -- it may, i1f allowed to pass through, open the
door to Bitcoin operations in superannuated power
plants all over New York State, a disaster. I -1
urge the D.E.C. and Governor Hochul to deny this
permit. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: The next speaker is

Carol Bloomgarden.
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MS. BLOOMGARDEN: Yes, hello.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hello.

MS. BLOOMGARDEN: Hi, can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. BLOOMGARDEN: Okay. Great. Thank
you. My name is Carol Bloomgarden. I live in
Schuyler County. I am a registered nurse and have a
Master's Degree in Resource Management Policy from
Cornell.

When we began studying climate change,
more than three decades ago, and we're thinking about
policy priorities for the future, we all understood
that the worst effects of climate change could be
avoided with proactive for -- forward thinking
actions.

While C.L.C.P.A is a good start, we
need to commit ourselves to following not only the
letter of the law, but its goals as well to make up
for the time that we have -- that we've lost.

Carbon emission -- carbon emissions
from this plant, according to Greenidge's own
estimates will far exceed the limits established by
its permit already. The initial permit was based on

information that we now know was incomplete at best.
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Producing this amount of emissions for
Bitcoin is in no way an urgent need or one worthy of
the cost. New York State doesn't need the sheer
amount of physical waste, noise disrupt --
disruption, thermal pollution, nor excess carbon
emissions that would be produced by this plant.

It offers relatively few jobs and
little in return for the average New Yorker to be
able to say it's worth the environmental costs. It
benefits a largely private enterprise whose long term
value may never make up for the climate and local
damage it -- it will incur.

Our local economy, not to mention the
health of the public, will be adversely impacted, and
for what, a private enterprise benefit -- benefiting
very few, forcing the public and future generations
to shoulder the cost.

Relying on carbon offsets is a poor
substitute for effective climate change policy.
Allowing this permit to go forward at this time would
send absolutely the wrong signal and would defeat all
of our intentions in passing the C.L.C.P.A. and
provide a devastating precedent for other semi --

similar questionable ventures.
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We need a full environmental
assessment before we can allow this project to
continue. Please deny the Title Five permit for the
Greenidge facility. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: The next speaker is
Ellen Weininger.

MS. WEININGER: Yes. Can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes. Thank you.

MS. WEININGER: Thank you for this
opportunity. My name is Ellen Weininger. I'm
director of Educational Outreach at Grassroots
Environmental Education, a science based
environmental health nonprofit.

We strongly urge the D.E.C. to reject
the renewal of the permits for Greenidge, which is
primarily producing energy for proof of work
cryptocurrency mining operations, an extremely energy
intensive process that is dramatically increasing
toxic air pollution and greenhouse gas emissions.
And it's violating New York's climate law.

We're out of time, mounting in
unprecedented extreme weather events including heat
waves, poor air quality days, wildfires, droughts,

flooding and the most recent dire report by the
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Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change.

It served as a loud wakeup call for
D.E.C. 1In recent months alone, millions of New
Yorkers have borne the brunt of a growing number of
days with hazardous high heat indexes and exceedingly
high levels of particulates and ground level ozone
pollution, considered unhealthy for the general
population, and especially dangerous for vulnerable
populations, including children, developing fetuses,
seniors, individuals with lung and cardiovascular
disease, and communities of color.

The recent flash flooding disasters
during Hurricane Ida have also taken a devastating
toll on New Yorkers and resources. When Greenidge
was brought back on line as a natural gas plant in
2017, the D.E.C. failed to consider this a new source
and did not conduct a full environmental review.

New York's Climate Law requires that
both the greenhouse gas emissions produced onsite as
well as those emissions released upstream are
factored. According to Greenidge's own calculations,
these combined would exceed one million tons, well
over the limit of its permit by approximately sixty-

seven percent. It's imperative that the D.E.C.
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follows the science.

In addition to the I.P.C.C. report,
other studies conducted by environmental health
project and the institute for health and the
environment demonstrate the adverse health effects
from gas facilities in New York.

Hundreds of scientific studies
compiled in a comprehensive compendium by concerned
health professionals of New York and physicians for
social responsibility also show the negative health,
environmental and climate impacts affecting
(unintelligible) and fossil fuel infrastructure.

In fact, the World Health Organization
has repeatedly warned that air pollution is the
biggest environmental threat to human health,
significantly contributing to the growing rates of
chronic disease and responsible for over seven-and-a-
half million deaths every year.

Emerging scientific studies show a
significant relationship between air pollution and
COVID. A recent -- including a recent Harvard study
that found a link between air pollution with an
eleven percent increase in mortality from COVID for

every one microgram per cubic meter increase in air
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pollution.

The findings emphasize the importance
of regulatory efforts to limit air pollution exposure
risk. The adverse impacts to air quality, water
supplies, public health or climate, and the lack of
compliance with New York's Climate Law are more than
enough to reject this ill-advised care permit.

With so much at stake for millions of
New Yorkers statewide, the D.E.C. has only one
justifiable action, the rejection of these permits
without further delay. Thank you again for this
opportunity.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is Frank Zgola. Frank Zgola, if you are on
the telephone, please press star three so we can
unmute your line.

Okay. The next speaker is Dale Irwin.

MS. ANTOLAS: I've unmuted Dale.

MR. IRWIN: Hello.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hello

MR. IRWIN: Hey, I -- I spoke this
morning —-- or this afternoon.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Okay. Thank

you. Okay. The next speaker is Bonny and Fred
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Fredenburg.

MS. FREDENBURG: I'm here. Can you
hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. FREDENBURG: Hello.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes. I can hear
you.

MS. FREDENBURG: Well, after listening
to all the speakers before me, I do not -- I agree
with everything they've said. I do not want to
reiterate the same things.

We, Ron and I, strongly oppose this
permit being renewed and we ask Governor Hochul and
the D.E.C. to deny. But I want -- I do not want to
repeat a lot of things that were already said but I
want to give a couple of personal observations.

We have been on this lake for over
fifty years. 1I've been on it fifty years. My
husband has been on it sixty years. We live in
Buffalo and split our time between Buffalo and Seneca
Lake. We have been through Tonawanda Coke. We have
been through Bethlehem Steel.

Are we never going to learn from these

things that have been previously before us that have
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been ignored and denied and not taken care of?

Seneca Lake is, maybe you're not aware
of this, is the largest freshwater lake within the
continental United States not touching another
country. People have never heard of us before.

I always say, we used to live in the
cornfields, now we live in Napa Valley, and people
are begging us to come and see it, and take part in
it. Are we going to ruin that? Are we going to deny
all the wonderful progress that has been made?

My grandsons are the fifth generation
on Seneca Lake. They can see what's happening with
the environment and the HAPs growing and the water
changing. Is it going to come to the point where
their children say to us, why did you let this
happen? Why wasn't something done?

Don't wait until it's too late. Stop
this permit. And thank you for your time.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. 1Is Fred
Fredenburg also giving a statement?

MS. FREDENBURG: No. Would -- we'll
do it -- we're doing it together.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Okay. Thank

you. Okay. The next speaker is Mary Campbell. Mary
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Campbell, if you're on the telephone, please press

star three.

Okay. The next speaker is Les
Monosory.

MR. MONOSORY: Hello.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hello.

MR. MONOSORY: Can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MR. MONOSORY: Hi, my name is Leslie
Monosory. I'm president of the New York State

Division of the Izaak Walton League of America,
representing a national conservation organization and
five of his chapters that are local chapters in New
York State.

The chapter most directly affected by
the proposed expansion of the Greenidge Bitcoin
operation is the Lake Keuka chapter located near Penn
Yan, New York.

I'd like to mention a October 11th
article in the Washington Post, which found that
eighty-five percent or four-fifths of the world's
population has experienced severe weather events made
worse by climate change.

We are concerned that Greenidge was
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originally permitted to generate power for public
use. It has now been converted to using power for a
private Bitcoin mining operation that admits up to
six-hundred forty-thousand tons of greenhouse gases
per year and intends to increase this amount in the
coming years.

New York Climate Leadership and
Community Protection Act intends to limit statewide
greenhouse gas emissions by 2000 -- by 2030, forty
percent of 1990 levels by 2030, and eighty-five
percent by 2050.

Bitcoin mining operations will
generate exactly the opposite effect and should not
be exempt from goals of New York's Climate Protection
Act.

The New York State division agrees
with the Seneca Lake Guardians that a full
environmental impact assessment should be conducted
on the impact of crypto mining operations, greenhouse
gas emissions as well as the state's air and water
quality.

The SEQRA Law requires a full
evaluation of current and future environmental

impacts, including climate impacts. We recommend
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that the permit be denied. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. It looks
like we have someone with their hand raised.

MR. ZGOLA: Hello. This is Frank
Zgola. Can you hear me?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes, I can.

MR. ZGOLA: Well, thank you for taking
the call. I am speaking in opposition to the permit
being issued, and in addition to the points raised by
others, I have a couple in regard to the power
consumption by the Greenidge facility.

Certainly, we know it generates heat,
there's water that will be heated for cooling
purposes and puts carbon dioxide into the atmosphere.
Apparently, the electronic machines that are used
need to be updated every year or two and the old ones
get thrown away and lots of electronic waste
generated.

And one point that hasn't been
mentioned at all is that in the manufacture of new
machines, there's a lot of energy consumed and a lot
of product being wasted in that whole process.

The second point that I'd make is that

forty years ago, I couldn't perceive the use of
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credit cards like there are now that pretty much
taken over our lives. So I imagine that the
cryptocurrency is, perhaps a wave of the future but
there's other cryptocurrencies, like Nano and Adera
that use very little energy to be generated.

And I would urge the investors of
Greenidge to consider that, perhaps they're backing
the wrong horse in that race and look for a different
cryptocurrency.

And lastly, as a taxpayer, I'm very
tired of paying for cleanup, investors, big business,
follow the environment, create messes,
(unintelligible) canal and the super funds are
needed, o0il spills and brownfields that are created
and who gets to pay to clean it all up? It's the
taxpayers.

And those are the extra additional
points I'd like to make an end with urging the D.E.C.
and the Governor to deny the permit. Thank you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you. The next
speaker is James Hufnagel. James Hufnagel, if you are
on the telephone please press star three.

Okay. And next, I'll call Jacqueline

Ragusa. Jacqueline Ragusa, i1f you're on the line and

ARIl@courtsteno.com WWwWw.courtsteno.com


www.courtsteno.com
mailto:ARII@courtsteno.com

800.523.7887 Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 87
10-13-2021 - Greenidge Generation LLC - WebEx

on the telephone, please press star three.

Okay. If anybody is in attendance
tonight who believes they were scheduled to speak and
we have not called your name, we would ask that you
raise your hand at this time.

If you're on the telephone, again, the
way you raise your hand is to press star three. And
if you joined us by internet, click on the
participants button to open up the participant's
panel. You will see at the bottom of your screen a
small hand icon. If you click on that, you will
raise your hand.

MS. ANTOLAS: I think we have call in
user twenty-five, their hand raised, and we'll get
unmute them now.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay.

MR. BUTTONS: Hello.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hi.

MR. BUTTONS: Yes, my name is Terry
Buttons. I'm a Yates County Legislator. I didn't
know if I had the opportunity to speak again.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Hi. Okay. I'm
sorry --

MR. BUTTONS: I missed -- I missed my
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A.L.J. OLIVIERT: -- we —-- okay.

MR. BUTTONS: I missed my earlier
appointment time, ma'am.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay.

MR. BUTTONS: Just a second, just to
let people know what I'm doing tonight. I'm a Yates
County farmer, fifth generation. I'm hauling a load
of Seneca grapes tonight to a winery just to let
people know that I am working. That's why I didn't
make my original time, but I appreciate the
opportunity to speak tonight.

I listened to a lot of things. I've
had the opportunity as a Yates County Legislator to
attend the power plants first opening and then they
invited myself and the rest of the legislators that
represent Potter (unintelligible) to tour the plant
again and see how they've changed the operations and
improved the operations of that -- that operation.

But as many people have talked
tonight, they're not Yates County taxpayers. They
don't understand the benefits of this plant. They
don't understand what it does to our community. They

like to come and visit our communities, but they
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don't understand what it takes to run our government,
run our businesses, run our farms like myself.

And I appreciate that they've made the
commitment to continue to improve. Keep the public
in our communities in mind as they do things. I
would hope a lot of the people that spoke tonight
would take the opportunity to put their energies
north of Seneca Lake is down state's energy that
comes in methane from our landfills needs to be
addressed too.

New York City's garbage problem does
not -- need to continue to affect the quality of life
in our agriculture, our water, in our air. The
methane that comes from those places far exceeds what
goes on.

Greenidge has tried every day to
improve the quality of life and their operations for
the people in this county. Our land is very valuable
in Yates County and in this country.

The people that want their Prius' and
cell phones plugged in because that's their way of
life now, I don't understand. We need to eat once or
twice a day, and our land being valuable to grow the

crops to feed people, the electricity is needed.
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They could take a minute and go back
and see what went on in Texas when those people
didn't have electricity. Businesses have sidelines,
and when they're generating revenue by paying sales
tax on that revenue that helps this community, this
county, these few (unintelligible) the taxpayers that
did speak, we all benefit. And the people that come
from all over this world and all over the state in
this country to enjoy our quality of life appreciate
good business run entities that generate profits and
share them with their workers and the people in our
county.

Thank you so much for having the
opportunity to let me re-speak tonight, again. I'm

hauling a load of Seneca Lake grapes tonight, and I

appreciate agriculturally and what -- what Greenidge
does. Thank you. I appreciate it. Have a good
night.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you.

MR. BUTTONS: You're welcome.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: If there is anyone
else that believes they -- they were scheduled to
speak and we haven't called your name, please —--

please raise your hand at this time.
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2 MS. ANTOLAS: We have Joseph Campbell
3 with their hand raised. 1I'll unmute them.

4 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: He spoke already.

5 MS. ANTOLAS: They are unmuted.

6 MR. CAMPBELL: Am I unmuted?

7 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

8 MR. CAMPBELL: Okay. Thank you. I

9 just wanted to follow up with -- and -- I -- I
10 already was given the opportunity to speak. I
11 appreciate that, and I appreciate everything you guys
12 are doing but the -- the bottom line is that this is
13 a hearing regarding Title Five and Title Four Air

14 Permits.

15 And the economics of what this

16 particular corporation is doing should have no

17 bearing on the -- the D.E.C.'s issuance or -- or work
18 -— or determination on those permits.

19 I know that a lot of people who live
20 in the town of Torrey and Yates County are in favor
21 of this because of the -- the tax benefits and -- and
22 they're -- the handful of jobs.
23 But I don't think that that should
24 have a bearing on what we're talking about tonight,
25 which is issuance or denial of the Title Five and
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Title Four air permits.

Some of the people that spoke tonight
are on an advisory board for the corporation. We
believe that they're being paid well for their --
their role. And -- and --

A.L.J. OLIVIERT: They -- they should
have expressed their title.

MR. CAMPBELL: They didn't -- yeah,
they didn't -- they didn't say, you know, for -- for
transparency sake, I'm on an advisory board, I'm
getting paid by the corporation.

Having said that, I appreciate

everything that you, the A.L.J. Lara, and D.E.C.

staff have done. It's been a long day for all of us
and thank you very much for all of your -- you know,
your time and -- and thank you for listening to all

of our concerns.

MR. ANTOLAS: Thank you. It looks
like we have one other speaker that was raising their
hand.

MR. MCINTEE: Hello, this is Gary
McIntee, have you recognized me?

MS. ANTOLAS: Oh, Lara, I think you

are on mute.
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A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Can you hear me now?

MS. ANTOLAS: Yes.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Sorry, I
don't know what happened. Yes, Mr. McIntee?

MR. MCINTEE: Yes. Can you hear me
now?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MR. MCINTEE: Okay. So I've had many
good conversations with Dale Irwin, who's been on
this call, and I -- I fully support his staff and the
jobs they do.

At the same time, I'm a little
concerned about the D.E.C. lacking of going through
all the processes, it should have happened during the
initial review of this air permit.

I believe that the current air permit
renewal should be approached as if it was a new
permit. And I also -- I'm very concerned about -- I
saw a memo to Greenidge in May, paragraph six, that
spoke of co-pollutants. And I have been trying to
find information about those co-pollutants.

And what -- as this facility gears up
and keeps producing more and more energy, there is

more and more toxins being discharged into the state,
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into the lake.

Both the heated water as well as the
chemicals that are coming out from maintaining the
plant. You know, we're in a time that this is -- the
-—- the country is recognizing, the world is
recognizing climate change.

And the D.E.C. really needs to step up
and support us in denying this permit because of all
the implications it has. I'll -- I'll leave it at
that. I'll follow up with a written comment.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Thank you. I
think at this time there is no one else with their
hand raised.

MR. ANTOLAS: I see a Jocelyn
DeCresenzo.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay, okay.

MR. ANTOLAS: Okay. I can unmute.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay.

MS. DECRESENZO: Hello, my name is --
my name is Jocelyn DeCresenzo, and I thank you for
the opportunity -- my name is Jocelyn DeCresenzo. I
thank you for the opportunity to speak tonight. I --
I hope that -- that the D.E.C. and Governor Hochul

will entirely reject the permit for the title
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(unintelligible) air quality permits.
And -- that for all of the reasons

that everyone has spoken for, I will not go into them
because they've been stated so eloquently, I do
believe that it -- if the D.E.C. and Governor Hochul
approve this, they will be -- you will be criminally
negligent to this generation to the next generation
and for generations to come.

And there is no time to waste on not
being melodramatic, but we are totally at a tipping
point. We cannot step backward with fossil fuels
with continuing to use them and pollute the
environment. And this project is -- is strictly
about the air quality right now, which will be
devastated even more than it already is, it will just
be devastating.

And I will write further comments, and
in the future before the --you know, before the
cutoff date, but I'm -- I'm putting my voice in right
now and that of my twin sister with whom I live. Her
name 1s Jackie Drexler and we both hope that you will
deny all permits. And that and an entirely new
review has to be conducted. Thank you very much.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Okay. Thank you.
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And is Jaclyn Ragusa on the line?

MS. RAGUSA: Hi, can you hear me-?

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Yes.

MS. RAGUSA: Okay. Yes, I am. All
right. My name is Jaclyn Ragusa, and I am a third
year student at Penn State University from East
Rockaway, Long Island.

I'm a psychology major with a focus in
business, minoring in human development and family
studies. In the future, I hope to become an
environmental lawyer practicing in New York State.

I'm -- I'm urging Governor Hochul's
administration and the D.E.C. to deny renewal of the
Title V air permit regarding Greenidge Generating
Station until full environmental impact statement is
prepared. In doing so, Governor Hochul can set a
president and reveal her commitment to environmental
conservation and the concerns of New Yorkers, unlike
what was seen under Governor Cuomo's administration.

Greenidge 1is threatening the
environmental health of Seneca Lake which impacts
every member of the Yates County and beyond. I'm
only twenty years old. I do not want to live in a

world where my health is being undermined because of
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leadership that fails to put the needs of their
citizens first.

Air, water, noise pollution will
impact my life far beyond the majority of those who
are listening, and I would like my comments to be
heard and taken into consideration.

The voice of the youth is wvital for
the success of the future. And I'm speaking on
behalf of my generation when I say environmental
justice is at the forefront of our concern. Thank
you.

A.L.J. OLIVIERT: Thank you.

THE REPORTER: This is Janet. Can I
get the spelling of her name, please, Jaclyn?

MS. RAGUSA: J-A-C-L-Y-N. Do you need
the last name too?

THE REPORTER: Yes.

MS. RAGUSA: R-A-G-U-S-A.

THE REPORTER: Thank you.

MS. RAGUSA: You're welcome.

A.L.J. OLIVIERI: It doesn't look like
anyone else has their hand raised. Just give it one
more minute. Okay. At this time, I want to thank

everyone for joining us here tonight.
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2 I appreciate all of you staying in

3 attendance and listening to the comments of the

4 community. We thank everyone who has taken the time
5 to participate in this hearing.

6 It is very helpful for the D.E.C. and
7 their review of this project. Thank you again. This
8 meeting is now concluded.

9 THE REPORTER: We are off the record.
10 A.L.J. OLIVIERI: Thank you.
11 (Off the record, 8:06 p.m.)
12 (The proceeding concluded.)
13
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2 STATE OF NEW YORK

3 I, JANET WALLRAVIN, do hereby certify that the foregoing
4 was reported by me, in the cause, at the time and place,
5 as stated in the caption hereto, at Page 1 hereof; that
6 the foregoing typewritten transcription consisting of
7 pages 1 through 98, is a true record of all proceedings
8 had at the hearing.

9 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto
10 subscribed my name, this the 10th day of November, 2021.
11

12 JANET WALLRAVIN, Reporter
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